
  

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE AGENDA 

 
 
Monday 29 February 2016 at 10.00 am in the Bridges Room - Civic Centre 
 

From the Chief Executive, Jane Robinson 

Item 
 

Business 
 

1.   Apologies  
 

2.   Minutes (Pages 1 - 4) 
 
The Committee is asked to approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
previous meeting. 
 

3.   Annual Report - Information Governance and the Council's use of powers 
under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (Pages 5 - 14) 
 
Report of the Strategic Director Corporate Services and Governance 

 
4.   Review of Absence in the Council - Monitoring Report (Pages 15 - 26) 

 
Report of the Chief Executive and Strategic Director Corporate Services and Governance 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Contact: Neil Porteous Tel: (0191) 433 2149  Date: Friday 19 February 2016 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



 

GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

CORPORATE RESOURCES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

Monday, 18 January 2016 
 

 
PRESENT: Councillor John Eagle 
  
 Councillors: P Foy, J Wallace, M Brain, M Charlton, P Dillon, 

S Green, M Hall, B Oliphant, M Ord and A Thompson 
 
CR26   APOLOGIES  

 
 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors R Beadle, L Caffrey, T 

Graham, J Hamilton and M Hood. 
 

CR27   MINUTES  
 

 RESOLVED –That the minutes of the meeting held on 30 November 2015  
be approved as a correct record. 
 

  
CR28   CORPORATE RESOURCES OSC WORK PROGRAMME REVIEW  

 
 The Committee received a report seeking its views on the effectiveness of the two 

case studies undertaken in 2014/15, including the subsequent monitoring of actions 
arising from the Committee’s findings.  
  
The case studies were used to examine the impact of welfare reform on Gateshead 
residents and the progress being made in relation to channel shift within the 
Council’s transformation programme. 
  
The report summarised the key issues and findings for each case study.  
  
The Committee was also asked to note that a draft work programme for 2016/17 is 
being prepared and that this will be set by the Committee at its meeting in April.  
  
RESOLVED:   i)       That the Committee was satisfied that potential review topics  

identified by Committee members for 2016/17 will be considered 
for inclusion in the work programme. 

ii)        The Committee was satisfied with the review monitoring process 
carried out so far. 

iii)       The Committee was satisfied with the effectiveness of the case 
studies undertaken so far. 

  
  
  
  
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



 

CR29   PERFORMANCE MONITORING: GATESHEAD VOLUNTARY ORGANISATIONS 
COUNCIL SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT  
 

 The Committee received a performance report from the Gateshead Voluntary 
Organisations Council (GVOC), in accordance with the requirements of the Service 
Level Agreement (SLA).  
  
Ian Blake, Interim Chief Executive of GVOC presented the report which provided an 
overview of GVOC’s performance in relation to developing and supporting 
Gateshead’s Voluntary and Community Sector.   
  
The quarterly monitoring chart, appended to the report, showed that GVOC had 
failed to meet five of the targets contained within the Service Level Agreement. The 
reasons for the variances were outlined.  
  
It was queried whether there is data showing the geographical delivery of support to 
Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS) organisations. It was noted that this is not 
monitored at present but that the collection of information for monitoring purposes 
will begin in due course. 
  
It was acknowledged that GVOC has experienced significant change. However 
concerns remain about GVOCs ability to deliver, particularly in relation to supporting 
grassroots organisations and groups. 
  
  
RESOLVED -           i)          That the information be noted. 

ii)         That the comments of the Committee be noted.  
  
 

CR30   GATESHEAD COMMUNITIES TOGETHER - ANNUAL UPDATE  
 

 The Committee received the fourth annual update report on the impact of 
Gateshead’s Communities Together Strategy (the strategy).  The report included 
information on the impact of actions as a result of the strategy by a range of Council 
services and partners over the period December 2014 – December 2015. 
  
Implementation of the strategy continues to be overseen through a co-ordinated 
approach between the Council and Gateshead Voluntary Organisations Council. 
Although the multi-agency working group no longer meets regularly, the group 
maintains an oversight of activities taking place in communities across Gateshead 
and encourages close working relationships to share resources and avoid 
duplication.  
  
Examples of the work undertaken by the Council and partners were identified 
against the following five priority areas: 

 Community engagement and participation 

 Community capacity building 

 Information and communication 

 Involving children, young people and schools 

 Supporting positive community relationships 

Page 2



 

The Committee was satisfied with the outcomes, the overall impact of the strategy 
as detailed in the report and in particular, the co-ordinated approach to community 
engagement, increased levels of participation and the sustainable approach to 
community asset transfers.  
  
The key areas of work to be delivered through 2016 were also detailed in the report.  
  
The activities delivered as part of the “Fill the Holiday Gap” scheme were welcomed, 
such as the provision of recipes and advice on how to eat healthier on a budget. It 
was requested that information be provided to evaluate the long-term success of 
these activities. 
  
RESOLVED -  i)      That the information be noted. 

ii)      The Committee was satisfied with the impact of the strategy  
and action plan. 

iii)     The Committee endorsed the five priorities for the  
forthcoming year. 

                       iv)     That the strategy be reviewed in 2016.  
  
 

  
CR31   THE COUNCIL PLAN - SIX MONTH ASSESSMENT OF PERFORMANCE AND 

DELIVERY 2015/2016  
 

 The Committee received a report providing a six month assessment of performance 
for 2015/16 as a means of monitoring progress against the Council plan 2015-2020.  
The information presented specifically related to the role and remit of the Committee. 
  
It was clarified that CR10 (Increase speed of processing benefit claims) concerns 
only Housing Benefit claimants. It was queried whether the target should be lowered, 
however, the Committee was satisfied that it is consistent with other authorities and 
that work is being undertaken to improve actual performance. 
  
Details were sought on CR13a (Increase the number of under 19 year olds within 
the workforce through apprenticeships) and CR13b (Increase the number of Job 
Carved posts within the Council), in light of the challenging financial climate the 
Council continues to face.  
  
Reference was made in the report to disability and it was requested that the 
definition being used in performance monitoring activity be provided to the 
Committee for information. 
  
RESOLVED -             i)       That the Committee was satisfied with the activities  

undertaken during the past six months towards the 
delivery of the Council Plan 2015 – 2020. 

ii)        It was agreed that the report be referred to Cabinet on 9 
February 2016. 

  
  

        Chair……….……………….. 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 
 

CORPORATE RESOURCES 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
` 

29 February 2016 
 
 
 

TITLE OF REPORT: Annual Report –Information Governance and the 
Council’s use of powers under the Regulation of 
Investigatory Powers Act 2000 

 
 

REPORT OF: Mike Barker, Strategic Director, Corporate Services and 
Governance 

 
 

 

Summary 
 

This report provides the Committee with an overview of arrangements for Information 
Governance across the Council, including the annual reporting of data breaches.  It 
also provides details of the Council’s use of covert surveillance and offers assurance 
that when authorising covert surveillance the Council is compliant with the 
requirements of the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA). 

 
 

 

Information Governance 
 

Introduction 
 

1. This is the first annual report to the Committee regarding the Council’s Information 
Governance framework. It aims to provide the Committee with the legislative 
context within which the Council manages a range of sensitive information and 
personal data, compliance with relevant guidance and good practice, and the 
Council’s performance in this area over the last twelve months. It is therefore 
intended to form an important part of the Council’s Overview & Scrutiny 
Framework, alongside other annual performance reporting. 

 
Background 

 

2. Public trust in the way public services handle and share data is increasingly 
important, particularly in the context of greater digital storage and transfer of 
information. Service users expect easier access to services and a 'one stop’ 
delivery experience.  They want to be in control of their interactions with council 
services and for those services to be delivered at lower cost, more quickly and 
based on individual needs. This lies at the very core of what all local public 
services strive to do, and in Gateshead is captured within our policy objectives as 
set out in the Council Plan 2015-20 and our Digital Strategy. 

 
3. Success in this area depends on many factors, but effective and secure exchange 

and management of information is vital for both good service delivery, and for 
compliance with an increasingly onerous and prescriptive legislative framework at 
both a national and European level. The public and regulatory bodies must have 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

confidence in the way that any data we hold is treated, taking privacy and 
confidentiality into account, and that it is kept safe from misuse. Without that 
assurance service users are unlikely to engage, services will be less efficient and 
much poorer as a result, and we face stiffer penalties if found to be failing to meet 
our legal responsibilities.. 

 
4. In 2010 the Local Government Association produced data handling guidelines for 

local authorities. Those guidelines, which were revised in 2014, set out the steps 
that every local authority should take to monitor and control the management of 
information and to mitigate the risk should personal information be lost or data 
protection systems fail.  The Council’s approach to information governance is 
based on these guidelines. 

 
5. The Council recognises that there must be a systematic and planned approach to 

the management of its information.  This will ensure that from the time a record is 
created, until its disposal, standards and handling will be consistent across the 
organisation and that the record can be tracked throughout its lifecycle to ensure it 
serves the needs of the Council and its stakeholders, and complies with relevant 
legislation. 

 
6. The way the Council manages its information is also crucial to maintain effective 

and efficient business operations.  Information management is about providing an 
integrated records and information system to ensure quick, efficient and consistent 
access to records across the organisation.  Public sector organisations have more 
demands than ever before to be open and transparent. The introduction of the 
Freedom of Information Act 2000, on 1 January 2005 and the government’s 
transparency agenda means anyone can request information from the Council. 
This can be achieved quickly and efficiently if effective information management 
systems are in place. 

 
7. The Council has an Information Charter and an Information Strategy.  The strategy 

provides a framework which enables the Council to manage its information 
efficiently, recognising its value as a corporate asset for the delivery of effective, 
appropriate and transparent services. 

 
Information Governance Structure 

 
8. Accountable Officer – this role is assigned to the Chief Executive. The 

Accountable Officer has overall accountability for information governance across 
the Council and must provide thorough assurance, including a statement of internal 
control, to demonstrate that all risks are effectively managed and mitigated.  The 
Accountable Officer is required to sign any undertaking with the Information 
Commissioner should a data breach occur. 

 
9. Senior Information Risk Owner – (SIRO) – this role is assigned to the Strategic 

Director, Corporate Services and Governance.  The SIRO must determine how 
strategic business goals of the authority may be impacted by information risks and 
act as an advocate for information risk within senior management. He must 
oversee the development of an information risk policy, and strategy for 
implementing the policy, within the governance framework.  The role must accept 

Page 6



 

ownership of risk assessment processes for information risk, provide written advice 
to the Accountable Officer on the content of the statement of internal control, and 
undertake information governance training at least annually. 

 
10. Overall the role of the SIRO is to foster a culture that properly values, protects and 

uses information. One aspect of this is to ensure that awareness training is 
conducted at the appropriate level and to monitor understanding and ability 
periodically.  A further aspect is to establish and chair (or delegate chairing to the 
Deputy SIRO) a Corporate Information Governance Group whose remit is to report 
back to senior management on a regular basis. 

 
11. Deputy SIRO – this role has been assigned to the Information Rights Officer. The 

role is generally to assist the SIRO including, for example, in the collation of 
information from Information Asset Owners and Information Asset Assistants. 

 
12. Information Asset Owner - this role is assigned to every other Strategic and 

Service Director.  An Information Asset Owner needs to be identified for each of 
the information assets the Council holds, referenced and co-ordinated according to 
council function, based on the local authority function list produced by the Records 
Management Society of Great Britain. They are responsible for maintaining day to 
day information governance practice within their service area.  They need to 
understand and monitor: 

 

 what information assets are held, and for what purpose 

 how information is created, amended or added to over time 

 who has access to the information 

 

13. Information Asset Assistants - this role has been assigned to senior managers 
within each service.  They assist the Information Asset Owners to fulfil their role by 
acting as the first point of contact for staff who may have information governance 
queries. Their role is to ensure: 

 

 policies and procedures are followed 

 potential or actual security incidents are identified 

 Information Asset Owners are consulted on incident management 

 Information Asset Registers are accurate and maintained up to date 
 

14. Individual Responsibility – all Council staff are responsible for any information 
which they create or use: they must ensure that they create and maintain 
appropriate records in relation to their work at the Council and to manage those 
records in accordance with the Council’s information security and data protection 
policies and procedures. 

 

 All staff should: 

o make sure that records are complete and legible 
o keep records where they can be found 
o keep records up to date 
o keep track of records 
o make sure confidential records are kept secure 

o follow the Council’s records retention schedules for all records 

Page 7



 

o destroy records in accordance with the Council’s retention schedules. 
 

15. Internal Audit will be responsible for conducting an annual information audit.  The 
aims of the audit are: 

 

 to identify which business functions create which records 

 to identify what these records are used for, where and how they are kept 

 to identify how information is tracked within each service area 

 to identify if appropriate access controls are in place 

 to identify business critical records, which are necessary for the organisation’s 
daily business and legal obligations 

 to identify existing disaster recovery arrangements and undertake a gap 
analysis 

 to identify the level of staff awareness of information management issues 
information protection and disaster recovery 

 

16. An essential part of the information management role is protecting records from 
elements such as floods, fire, theft and loss.  The Council follows the National 
Archives Records Management Recovery plans standard for the management of 
government records.  This standard is a best practice benchmark for all 
organisations creating or holding public records. 

 
Information Storage 

 
17. Storage of the Council’s paper based records is reviewed annually in line with 

retention periods and records are destroyed or transferred to archive if required. 
 

Risk Assessment 

 
18. Information governance is included in the Council’s Strategic Risk Register. 

 
Training 

 
19. The SIRO, Deputy SIRO and all Information Asset Owners received training at the 

end of December 2013 from Dilys Jones Associates (‘DJA’, a nationally recognised 
training provider on information governance). Information Asset Owners received 
training in 2014 from the Deputy SIRO in relation to the completion of information 
asset registers and all registers were completed by the end of 2014. 

 
20. In 2015 the SIRO received further training from DJA at a regional event on SIRO 

roles and responsibilities. 

 
21. On-line training modules on information governance are in the process of being 

developed and will be rolled out across the Council during 2016/2017. 

Page 8



 

Data Breach Reporting 

 
22. Data breaches can be reported to the Information Rights Officer or via the 

incident reporting mail inbox. 
 

23. The SIRO is informed in the event of a data breach and the Information Rights 
Officer provides advice to the service concerned about what remedial action 
needs to be taken.  The SIRO makes a determination whether the incident has 
to be reported to the Information Commissioner in line with the Information 
Commissioner’s guidance on data breach reporting. 
 

24. The incident reporting inbox is an inbox which internal audit access and they 
can choose to investigate serious breaches. 

 
 

Month Data Breach Outcome 

Feb 2015 SEN record sent to the wrong person Record retrieved. Complainant complained 

to the  Information Commissioner. The 

Commissioner was happy with the action 

the Council had taken. Staff received 

training 

June 

2015 
Theft of database containing service 

user details by two former employees  
Reported to the Information Commissioner 

for him to prosecute. He declined to 

prosecute 

Aug 

2015 

Confidential report sent to the wrong 

family (child protection) 

Report retrieved - family informed 

Aug 

2015 
Complainant who asked to remain 

anonymous wrongly identified 
Apology given to the complainant.  Staff 

given training 

Oct 2015 e-mail sent to the wrong recipient Email recalled. Wrong recipient contacted 

email retrieved 

Dec 

2015 
Chairs’ report sent to the wrong 

family (child protection) 
Report retrieved - family informed 

 
25. Should a complaint be made to the Information Commissioner or a breach 

reported to the Information Commissioner’s Office (ICO) by the Council, the 
Information Rights Officer liaises with the ICO and the complainant to reach a 
satisfactory outcome. The ICO may also decide to take enforcement action 
against the Council: this may be in the form of criminal prosecution, non-
criminal enforcement and audit. The ICO also has the power to serve a 
monetary penalty notice on a data controller. To date, there has been no formal 
enforcement action taken against the Council for data breaches.  

 

Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA) 
 

Background 
 
26. This is the first report in relation to the Council’s use of RIPA. It was recommended 

in the new codes of conduct produced by the Office of the Surveillance 
Commissioner at the end of last year, that Councils should report their use of RIPA 
to elected members at least annually. 

 

Page 9



 

27. RIPA provides a statutory mechanism (i.e. ‘in accordance with the law’) for 
authorising directed and covert surveillance and the use of Covert Human 
intelligence Sources (CHIS).  It also permits public authorities to compel 
telecommunications and postal companies to obtain and release communications 
data in certain circumstances.  It seeks to ensure that any interference with an 
individual’s rights under Article 8 of the European Convention is necessary and 
proportionate. In doing so, RIPA seeks to ensure that both the public interest and 
the human rights of individuals are suitably balanced. 

 

28. Covert surveillance involves monitoring, observing, listening to persons, watching 
or following their movements, and is carried out in such a way that the subject of 
the surveillance is unaware it is taking place. 

 
29. There are two types of covert surveillance that the Council can use: 

 directed surveillance – this involves observing, following or watching the 
subject of the surveillance 

 CHIS – in relation to the Council’s functions, this involves using volunteer 
adults or children to attempt to make test purchases 

 

30. Typically this council uses RIPA in relation to benefit or council tax fraud when 
information is received that a claimant has someone living with them or is working 
and claiming benefits.  Surveillance will be used to watch the property to see if 
there is any evidence of another person living there.  If evidence is found the 
subject of the surveillance will be invited in for an interview under caution. 

 
31. The Council uses CHIS (normally members of staff or child volunteers), when it 

receives information that, for example, a householder is selling illegal tobacco or a 
shop is selling age restricted products such as alcohol, cigarettes or fireworks to 
underage children. The CHIS will be used to attempt to make a test purchase.  If 
the test purchase succeeds then the subject of the surveillance is invited in for an 
interview under caution. 

 
32. The Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 amended RIPA to restrict when councils can 

use the powers it provides. An authorisation for directed surveillance or CHIS can 
only be made by councils now if certain conditions are met: 

 

 that the authorisation is for the purpose of preventing or detecting crime 

 the criminal offence is or would be an offence which is punishable, whether on 
summary conviction or indictment , by a maximum term of at least 6 months 
imprisonment or 

 is an offence under: 

Page 10



 

o Section 146 of the Licensing Act 2003 (sale of alcohol to children 
o Section 147 of the Licensing Act 2003 (allowing the sale of alcohol to 

children) 
o Section 147A of the Licensing Act 2003 (persistently selling alcohol to 

children) 
o Section 7 of the Children and Young Persons Act 1933 (sale of tobacco 

etc. to persons under 18) 
 

33. Covert surveillance should only be used in exceptional circumstances when 
necessary information cannot be uncovered by overt means – open CCTV or 
officers patrolling with visible body worn video cameras. The decision to use 
covert surveillance must take into account the issue of proportionality - the 
surveillance must not be excessive in relation to the seriousness of the problem it 
seeks to address. 

 

The Council must ensure that: 

 all covert surveillance exercises conducted by the Council comply with the 
requirements of RIPA and 

 all authorisations contain the detail of the surveillance which is to be permitted 
and why the authorising officer believes the surveillance to be necessary. To 
demonstrate the necessity of the covert surveillance all authorisations must 
mention all other possible means of discovering the desired information and the 
reason for their rejection. 

. 
34. Councils are not permitted to undertake intrusive surveillance i.e. tapping phone 

lines or any surveillance inside private property or placing tracking devices on a 
subject’s vehicle or person. 

 
35. Only duly appointed authorising officers can be permitted to authorise a 

covert surveillance exercise. 
 

Arrangements 
 

36. The Council’s compliance with RIPA is independently audited periodically by two 
Commissioners: the Office of the Surveillance Commissioner and the Office of the 
Communications Surveillance Commissioner. The Home Office has produced a 
code of conduct in relation to covert surveillance. The Commissioner audits how 
the Council has used its powers under the Act and how well it has complied with 
the code of practice. 

 
37. In addition, the Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 amended RIPA, meaning that 

before a surveillance exercise can take place, an application which has been 
authorised by an authorising officer has to be approved by a magistrate. 

 
38. The Investigatory Powers Tribunal can hear complaints from any person aggrieved 

by the conduct carried out in challengeable circumstances within one year.  The 
tribunal can award compensation or can quash or cancel any authorisation and can 
order the destruction of records of any information obtained by exercising any 
power. 

Page 11



 

39. The Act designates various roles which are held by specific Council officers 
as follows: 

 Senior Responsible Officer (SRO) – this role is held by the Service Director, 
Human Resources and Litigation. The SRO is responsible for: 
o ensuring that all authorising officers are of an appropriate level of seniority 

and have had training 
o the integrity of the process in place within the public authority to authorise 

directed and intrusive surveillance and interference with property or 
wireless telegraphy 

o compliance with Part II of the 2000 Act, Part III of the 1997 Act and with the 
codes of practice 

o engagement with the Commissioners and inspectors when they conduct 
their inspections, and where necessary, overseeing the implementation of 
any post inspection action plans recommended or approved by a 
Commissioner 

 

 RIPA Co-ordinating officer - this role is held by the Litigation Manager and 
Information Rights Officer.  The role is responsible for: 

o maintaining the central record of authorisations 
o collating the original applications/authorisations, review, renewals, 

cancellations 
o oversight of the submitted RIPA documentation 
o organising the RIPA training programme 

o raising RIPA awareness within the Council 

 
40. Authorising Officer - these roles are assigned to service managers or above who 

have been trained to authorise requests for directed surveillance and the use of 
CHIS. 

 
RIPA does not: 

o make lawful conduct which is otherwise unlawful 
o prejudice or disapply any existing powers available to the Council to obtain 

information by any means not involving conduct that may be authorised 
under this Act.  For example, it does not affect the Council’s current powers 
to obtain information via the DVLA or to get information from the Land 
Registry as to the ownership of a property. 

 

Statistics 
 

41. Gateshead Council uses its power under RIPA when it is appropriate to do so. 

 In 2015 the powers were used five times - on four occasions for illegal tobacco 
sales and once for counterfeit goods. 

 In 2014 the powers were used four times - on two occasions for counterfeit 
goods, once for benefit fraud and once for illegal tobacco. 

 In 2013 the powers were used 5 times – on four occasions for illegal tobacco 
and once for theft. 

Page 12



 

Inspection 

 

42. The Surveillance Commissioner inspected the Council in June 2015. He made a 

few observations about the number of authorising officers and recommended that 

training of authorising and requesting officers was undertaken more frequently.  He 

also suggested that reports be made to elected members about the use of RIPA 

and recommended some minor amendments to the Council’s policy.  The issues 

raised have been addressed. All officers received refresher training in November 

2015. 

 

Case studies 
 

43. Council officers enter a pub on a number of occasions and behave as ordinary 
customers to covertly observe whether there is compliance with the smoke free 
legislation.  If they find non-compliance they leave the premises and colleagues 
equipped with covert video recording equipment record the activities of offenders 
(those smoking and those in charge of the bar). Is RIPA authorisation available? 

 
 Yes – directed surveillance 

 Yes - CHIS authorisation 

 Yes – intrusive authorisation required 

 No – surveillance outside RIPA 

 
44. The trading standards team has received complaints that a local individual is 

advertising fake goods on facebook to their facebook friends.  When he is 
contacted through official channels he denies everything. You cannot access his 
facebook page as you are not a friend.  In any event the Council blocks access to 
facebook. An officer who has a personal facebook account volunteers to “friend” 
the target in order to access his facebook page thus allowing investigations into 
what goods are being offered for sale.  The team asks him to print out the relevant 
pages and give him a list of questions to ask the target.  Is RIPA authorisation 
available? 

 
 Yes – directed surveillance 

 Yes – CHIS authorisation 

 Yes – intrusive surveillance 

 No – surveillance outside of RIPA 
 

45. You are line manager for a difficult employee.  He is off sick with a bad back. 
Other staff have reported that he is doing building and decorating works and that 
he advertises in a local shop.  Officers go to the shop and see his advert.  They 
take the number and then ring pretending to be a customer inviting him to come to 
a house to give a quote for work.  Is RIPA authorisation available? 

Page 13



 

 Yes - directed surveillance 

 Yes - CHIS authorisation 

 Yes – intrusive surveillance 

 No - surveillance outside of RIPA 
 
 

Recommendation 
 

46. The Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to endorse 
the information in the annual report, and satisfy themselves that the Information 
Governance is operating satisfactorily and that the Council uses the powers under 
the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act appropriately. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Contact: Deborah Hill EXT: 2110 

Page 14



   

 

  

 
 

 
 
 
TITLE OF REPORT: Review of Absence in the Council – Monitoring Report 
 
REPORT OF: Jane Robinson, Chief Executive 

Mike Barker, Strategic Director, Corporate Services & 
Governance 

 

 
SUMMARY 

The purpose of this report is to update the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on actions 
taken since the last monitoring report which was considered on 7 September 2015. 
 

 
Background  
 

1. Cabinet asked the former Corporate Vitality Overview and Scrutiny Committee to 
carry out a review of absence in the Council, and between February and July 2005, 
the Committee undertook a review of the strategies, systems and procedures the 
Council is employing to reduce sickness absence levels within its workforce.   

 
2. A number of recommendations were identified to be included in an Attendance 

Management Action Plan for the Council to inform its ongoing efforts to reduce 
sickness absence.  Councillors agreed at the meeting on 7 September 2015 to 
keep the matter under scrutiny and this is the eighteenth update on progress since 
the Committee considered the final report arising from the review.  

 
Statistical Information 
 

3. At a previous meeting councillors requested that future reports include annual 
graphs to illustrate any monthly and seasonal trends in sickness absence.  The 
attached appendices contain information relating to: 
 

 The causes of sickness absence  

 Sickness absence total days lost 

 Percentage of sickness absence due to stress 
 

The statistics quoted in this report relate to the period 1 January 2015 to 31 
December 2015. 

 
Although there was a general downward trend in sickness absence from 2005, the 
data indicates that since 2013 the level of sickness absence has been rising.  The 
previous figure reported to OSC for average sickness days per FTE was 10.16 
days absence for the period 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015. This figure is calculated 
based on the former BVPI formula, which the Council has retained as a key 

CORPORATE RESOURCES 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

29 February 2016 
 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



   

 

performance indicator, and only takes into account permanent employees including 
those in schools. The same calculation for the period 1 January 2015 to 31 
December 2015 was 10.25 days absence.   
 

Sickness Absence Causes – Appendix 1 
 

5. This appendix shows the causes of sickness absence in percentage terms for the 
Council.  Across the Council as a whole, stress/depression and mental ill health 
now accounts for 24% which is a slight increase since the last report and it remains 
the largest cause of sickness absence.  Post–op recovery/hospital treatment makes 
up 19% and other musculo-skeletal conditions account for 16%.  These three 
categories remain the largest causes of sickness absence.   

 
Sickness Absence Days Lost – Appendices 2, 3 & 4  
 

6. Appendix 2 shows the total number of sick days lost per group/service. Appendix 3 
shows the average sick days lost per FTE per group. Appendix 4 shows the overall 
trend in sickness absence.  

 
Sickness Absence Days Lost Due to Stress – Appendix 5 & 6  
 

7. Stress, depression and mental ill health issues remain the largest cause of 
absence.  The average for the whole Council is now 2.73 days per FTE excluding 
schools for the 12 month period 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015. This was 
previously reported as 1.9 days per FTE including schools for the 12 month period 
November 2013 to October 2014. 
 

8. The Council’s year end sickness absence figures for the last 5 years based on the 
former BVPI formula (including schools) were: 
 

 Actual 
days per employee 
per year per year 

Target 
days per employee 
per year 

November 2010 to October 2011 
November 2011 to October 2012 
November 2012 to October 2013 
November 2013 to October 2014 
July 2014 to June 2015 

10.32 
  8.55 
  9.03 
  9.30 
10.16 

10.55 
10.15 
10.00 
  8.25 
  8.1 

 
9. The actual figure at the end of December 2015 was 10.25 days lost per FTE 

including schools which indicates that absence levels are continuing to rise.   
 

 
What has happened since the last report? 
 

10. As documented in previous reports the level of sickness absence remains high, 
particularly due to stress/depression and mental ill health.  Since the last report we 
have: 

Page 16



   

 

 Continued to support employees suffering from stress at work and other 

stressors through sickness absence and counselling referrals.  

 Delivered two ‘Managing Stress Positively’ courses for managers in the 

Council Chamber.  These were delivered by Danny Halpin our lead 

counsellor.  The courses looked at stress related sickness absence; costs; 

impact of change; good management; intervention and prevention and the 

importance of tackling issues before it led to sickness absence.  They were 

reasonably well attended and feedback was positive. 

 Revised and updated the corporate guidance on stress. This was done to 

incorporate specific corporate responsibilities, reflect the introduction of the 

new template risk assessment form and give precise information for 

managers. 

 Developed a new template risk assessment form to be used by managers. 

Training is being arranged to assist managers in dealing with stress and 

other mental health issues.  

 Completed the Stress Toolkit which is now available on the intranet.  This 

includes information and guidance on managing and dealing with workplace 

stress and promoting positive mental health.  The toolkit provides guidance 

for employees, guidance for managers, general information about stress and 

health and safety executive guidance.   

 Delivered learning on stress management organised by Workforce 

Development as follows:  

o 3 Stress-Busters courses delivered with 31 people attending 

o 32 employees completed a Stress Management for Employees 

module on e-learning 

o 19 employees completed a Stress Management for Managers module 

on e-learning 

 Facilitated five Stress Focus Groups (Assessment and Personalisation, Care 

Call, Provider Services Managers, Providers Services staff and Housing 

Services Managers). 

 Completed a range of health campaigns as part of the Better Health at Work 

Award including cancer awareness; heart health; Stoptober, Stroke 

Awareness,  Movember (Men’s Health Awareness Campaign), Dry January 

and ‘Wear it, Beat it’ (British Heart Foundation). 

 Recruited Health Advocates from the majority of services who can assist 

with promoting initiatives, and signposting both employees and residents to 

information and support about health and wellbeing.   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



   

 

What will we do next? 
 

11. A pilot course (4 x 1 hour sessions) is to be offered to employees at work suffering 
from stress; employees absent from work suffering from stress; employees 
returning to work following absence and employees who know they are prone to 
suffer from stress, anxiety and depression.  The course will give employees the 
tools to help them manage their symptoms more effectively in the workplace.  

 

12. Training for employees in mental health first aid is continuing to be rolled out.  This 

will ensure additional workplace contacts are available to signpost employees to 

enable them to get the right level of support.  The recently appointed Senior 

Occupational Health Adviser will support the Mental Health First Aiders in their role. 

 

13. Dr Abbas, the Council’s senior Occupational Health Adviser will be leading a 

workshop involving Service Directors to look at options and initiatives around 

prevention which could have a positive impact in terms of reducing sickness 

absence levels and generally improving health and wellbeing across the workforce. 

14. Work is ongoing to implement the Workforce Plan to ensure that managers have 
the necessary skills and fully understand the requirements of the absence 
management policy and procedure.  Training will also be provided on managing 
capability and performance which are often interlinked with attendance issues. 

 
15. The Council’s new HR & Payroll system (iTrent) will be operational by March 2016. 

This will provide managers with ready access to absence management data and 
information to assist them in managing attendance. 

 
Recommendation  
 
The views of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are sought on: 
 

 Whether the Committee is satisfied that the actions necessary to reduce the 
sickness absence levels of employees are in place. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Contact:   Deborah Hill     Ext. 2110 

Page 18



   

 

 

 
This page is intentionally left blank 

Page 19



 
Appendix 1 

   

 

3.94
2.66

1.23 1.67
2.68

1.66

18.89

1.30

7.80

24.44

8.68

16.37

8.67

3.76 2.27 2.44 2.12 1.70
6.58

16.63

2.37

7.95

25.69

12.56 11.22

4.70

0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

25.00

30.00

%

Causes of Sickness Absence
1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015

Whole Council

Schools

P
age 20



 
Appendix 2 

   

 

22340

16980

2514
833 467

13192

56326

43083

0

10000

20000

30000

40000

50000

60000
A

b
se

n
ce

 d
ay

s 
p

e
r 

FT
E

Total Sickness Days
1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015 

P
age 21



 
Appendix 3 

   

 

14.92

10.42

6.70

5.18
4.82

7.64

10.25

11.45

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

14.00

16.00
A

b
se

n
ce

 d
ay

s 
p

e
r 

FT
E

Sickness Absence 
1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015

P
age 22



 
Appendix 4 

   

 

0

0.2

0.4

0.6

0.8

1

1.2

Ja
n

u
ar

y 
2

0
1

5

Fe
b

ru
ar

y 
2

0
1

5

M
ar

ch
 2

0
1

5

A
p

ri
l 2

0
1

5

M
ay

 2
0

1
5

Ju
n

e
 2

0
1

5

Ju
ly

 2
0

1
5

A
u

gu
st

 2
0

1
5

Se
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

5

O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
5

N
o

ve
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

5

D
e

ce
m

b
er

 2
0

1
5

D
ay

s 
lo

st
 p

e
r 

FT
E

Sickness Absence
1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015

Whole Council

Schools

P
age 23



 
Appendix 5 

   

 

4.31

1.78 1.86

0.80

1.09

1.96

2.49

2.73

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

3.00

3.50

4.00

4.50

5.00

D
ay

s 
lo

st
 p

e
r 

FT
E

Sickness Absence Days per FTE
Stress, Depression & Mental Ill Health
1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015

P
age 24



 

   

 

 
 
 

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Annual Report - Information Governance and the Council's use of powers under the Regulation of Investigatory Powers Act 2000
	4 Review of Absence in the Council - Monitoring Report

